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Mr S Gartner  

Co. 1010 – 1014 Pittwater Road 

Collaroy NSW 2097 

 

12th June 2024 

 

Dear Sean, 

RE: RFI by Northern Beaches Council at 1010 – 1014 Pittwater Road, Collaroy 

 

1. Background 

 

A Development Application (DA 2023/1395) has been lodged with Northern Beaches 

Council to demolish the existing and the construction of a mixed use development on 

Site (development works). 

 

To prepare this report we have reviewed the following documents: 

• Arboricultural Assessment Report by Jacksons Nature Works, dated 24.6.2023 

(AAR/JNW 2023). 

• RFI by Northern Beaches Council. 

 

This report will provide Council with our discussions and recommendations for their 

approval. 

 

2. Observations 

 

The same tree numbering used in this report are those used in the AAR/JNW 2023 for 

ease of reference. 

 

3. Discussions 

 

3.1 The following comments are advised in response to Councils request and the 

modified design: 

 

1. Council’s Landscape Officer has calculated the encroachment within the TPZ 

of Tree 12 at 19.5%. 

2. JNW calculated an encroachment of 10.95%. 

3. It is my position the increase over the threshold of 10% as noted in Section 3 

of AS 4970 – 2009 is assessed to be acceptable for the following details: 

a. Tree 12 is in good condition and in typical form for a Cook Pine with a 

self-correcting trunk. 

b. I am happy to accept Council’s calculation of 19.5% as opposed to my 

calculation of 10.955, an increase of 9.05%. 

c. The proposed development is outside the SRZ radius of 2.6m radius which 

will maintain this tree’s stability as noted in Section 3.3.5 SRZ of AS 4970 

– 2009. 
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d. The remaining portion of the TPZ remains undisturbed and contiguous 

with the TPZ. 

e. No canopy pruning is required to undertake the development works. 

f. The availability of soil moisture will not be affected by the development 

works, plus access to soil nutrient. 

g. To guide arborists and developers Mr G Paroissien (GP) of Landscape 

Matrix has produced a guide to the level of encroachments beyond the 

10% threshold – refer below. 

h. The level of encroachment as described by GP “moderate”. 

i. The moderate level is supported as “ the tree is in good health and vigour 

and is not a particularly sensitive species”, plus as noted above the 

development is outside the SRZ, no pruning is required and the remainder 

of the TPZ remains undisturbed and contiguous with the TPZ. 

j. No changes to the design is required. 

 

I trust these details will allay the concerns of Council. 

 

                                                          
Ross Jackson M.A.A. & M.A.I.H. 

Consulting Arborist 1695 

Graduate Certificate in Arboriculture AQF Level 8 (Honours)  

Diploma Horticulture (Arboriculture) – AQF Level 5 

Certificate III in Horticulture 

Certificate in Horticulture (Landscape – Honours) 
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